
1 
 

MINUTES 

 

BOARDS OF BENTON AND FRANKLIN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 

Special Bi-County Board Meeting 

Wednesday, July 29, 2015, 1:30 p.m. 

Benton County Justice Center 

Commissioners Conference Room, 2nd Floor 

7122 W. Okanogan Place, Bldg. A 

Kennewick, WA  99336 

 

Benton County 

 

Present: Chairman Jerome Delvin 

  Commissioner James Beaver 

  County Administrator David Sparks 

  Clerk of the Board Cami McKenzie 

 

Absent: Commissioner Shon Small 

 

Benton County/Bi-County Employees Present: Lexi Wingfield, Personnel Manager; DPA Steve 

Hallstrom; DPA Ryan Lukson; Clerk Josie Delvin; Jacki Lahtinen, District Court Administrator; 

Undersheriff Jerry Hatcher; Linda Ivey, Sheriff’s Office; Adam Fyall, Sustainable Development; 

Paul Schut, Commissioner’s Office; Deputy Administrator Loretta Smith Kelty; Linda Robb, 

Human Services Administrator.   

 

Franklin County  

 

Present:   Chairman Brad Beck 

  Commissioner Rick Miller 

  Commissioner Bob Koch (via teleconference) 

 

Franklin County Employees Present:  Jerrod McPherson, Carlee Nave, PA Shawn Sant, Janet 

Taylor, Valerie Loffler.     

Discussion – Future of Human Services  

Chairman Delvin said it did not appear the counties had a written agreement regarding Human 

Services but had operated by past practice between the two counties.  He said if the counties 

were going to continue he felt they needed to come up with an agreement on how to operate. He 

said at a minimum, they should place one county with the responsibility of the administrative 

duties (including personnel, payroll and finances) and let that county run those since there had 

been a conflict and with one county in charge they would not have those possible conflicts 

running the joint county operation.   



2 
 

Chairman Peck asked how that process would work and Chairman Delvin suggested that 

whatever county took on that role would take the responsibility with everything except policy 

issues and those would be up to the legislative bodies.   

Chairman Peck asked about the hiring and firing and Chairman Delvin said except for one 

position, it was currently done that way. 

 

There was a discussion regarding compensation for bi-county employees and if one county 

decided to compensate at a higher rate.  Chairman Delvin said the bi-county employees were not 

currently benefitted the same as regular county employees and there had been delay in getting 

some of those issues approved.   

 

Chairman Peck indicated that state pass-through money might not disadvantage the other county 

but there could be a problem if one county had unilateral authority; he said the delay for 

employees seemed to be in bringing up bi-county employees to the Benton County level.  He 

said it was problematic for executive decisions to be made by one county, ethically and legally.  

 

Chairman Delvin suggested one way to do it would be to contract out the services by having one 

county contract with the other to perform the services or to have Benton County do some 

services and Franklin County do some.  He said that trying to work through these bi-county 

issues had been a problem and at a minimum he wanted to work through the Human Services 

issue.   

 

Chairman Peck said he had a problem with one county executing all the functions on behalf of 

the other due to liability and/or financial risk.  He said it appeared that Benton County currently 

handled the day to day administrative (payroll, hiring) and the bigger issues were handled 

together.   

 

Chairman Delvin agreed but said that Benton County was not compensated for those functions.   

He also talked about the Detox Center and funding issues associated with that service. 

 

Chairman Peck said it appeared the counties had the following options:  (1) remain status quo; 

(2) work on a written agreement; (3) primary operator with the other county being a subscriber; 

or (4) the counties have separate operations, although he said he was not advocating for that.   

 

Chairman Delvin said that he was agreeable to looking at an operating agreement.  If they 

couldn’t agree, they could look at contracting or then maybe split the bi-county operation.   

 

Commissioner Miller said he would like to see the bi-counties continue to collaborate and keep 

what they still had.  He said when there was a disagreement it would be a good idea to have a 

written agreement.   



3 
 

Commissioner Beaver said he wanted to see some guidelines and operating language. He said if 

they couldn’t reach an agreement, then they would have a different discussion but he had 

concerns about the current process. 

 

Commissioner Koch via/teleconference, said it sounded like Benton County was having a hard 

time working with Franklin County but he didn’t know where the conflicts were.  He said it 

appeared for a number of months different things were going on that he was not aware of.  

 

Chairman Delvin said that letters were sent to Franklin County about issues and they did not get 

a response and that was frustrating.  It was clarified there were three different letters sent since 

March.  Mr. Sparks said they referred to Superior Court, Juvenile, and OPD (specifically 

operating and maintenance costs at Juvenile and Superior Court and how they were calculated).  

Ms. Smith Kelty said the letters were sent to the Chairman and most recently to all three 

commissioners.   

 

Chairman Delvin said the legal teams for each county could look at an agreement outlining costs 

for day to day responsibilities.   

 

Commissioner Koch said that was a very good place to start but was concerned that Benton 

County had not received responses to three letters.   

 

Commissioner Beaver also agreed it was a good place to start.  He asked who they should 

address the letters to and Franklin County indicated to send it to their county administrator.  

 

Chairman Peck said he believed responses had been sent but he would look into it.   

 

Executive session – Review Performance of a Public Employee  

 

The Boards went into executive session at 2:00 p.m. for up to 45 minutes to discuss the 

performance of a public employee.  Also present were Jerrod McPherson, Carlee Nave, PA 

Shawn Sant, Janet Taylor, Valerie Loffler, Ryan Lukson, Lexi Wingfield, Steve Hallstrom, 

Loretta Smith Kelty, David Sparks and Cami McKenzie.     

The Boards came out of executive session at 2:40 p.m.    No decisions were made in executive 

session.   

 

It was announced that no decisions would be made at this meeting.  The Boards agreed they 

wanted to meet again next week and the appropriate notices would be sent out.   

  



4 
 

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 2:41 p.m.   

 

 

 

_______________________________   ______________________________ 

Clerk of the Board      Chairman 

 

 


